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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF MISSOURI

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION,
Plaintiff, Case No. :& ~ a\(' -QV / 055
v. STIPULATED ORDER FOR

PERMANENT INJUNCTION, V)
NRRM, LLC,  limiled ligbility company, also dba_| MONETARY JUDGMENT, AND ¢ _ | 7, ’
CARSHIELD, OTHER RELIEF dq

-AMER-ICAN AUTO-SHIELD, LLC, a limited
liability company,
, Defendants-.» )
Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission (“Commission™ or “FTC"), filed its Complaint

for Permanent Injunction, Monetary Judgment, and Other Relief (“Complaint"), for a permanent

injunction, monét'ary-rclief, and other relief in this matter, pursuant to Sections 13(b) and 19-of

the Federal Trade Commission Act (“FTC Act"), 15 (h) and §7b and the

Tclcma:ketingfand Consamer Fraud and Abuse Prevention Act (“Telemarketing Act”), 15
U.S.C. §§ 6101-08. The Commission and Defendants 5tipu‘l'ate, to the entry of this Stipulated
Order for Permanent Injunction, Monetary Judgment, and Other Relief (“Order”) to resolve all
malters in dispute in this action between them.

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED ss follows:

FINDINGS.

1. This Court has jurisdiction over this matter.

2. The Complaint charges that Defendants participated in deceptive acts or practices
inviolation of Section § of the FTC Act, LS_U.S.Q_MS, and in violation.of the FTC's:
Telemarketing Sales Rule (“TSR”), 16 C.F.R. Part 310, by advertising, marketing, and selling

‘vehicle service contracts (“VSCs") to consumers throughout the United States using false and/or
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misleading claims regardirig; among other things, what the VSCs cover, what repair facilities
consumers:can use: for.-repairs, and whether endorsérs have and/or use the VSCs.

3 Defendantsneither admit nor deny any. of the allegations in the Complaint, except.
as specificallystated in this-Order. Only for purposes of this action, Defendants admit the facts
necessary 10°establish'jurisdiction:

4. Defendants waive any claim that they may have under the Equal Access to Justice
Act, 28 U:S.C. § 2412, concerming the prosecution of this action through the date of this Order,
and agrce to bear their'own costs and attomney fees.

S. Defendants and the Commission waive all rights to appeal or otherwise challenge
or.contest thé validity of this Order.

DEFINITIONS:

For the purpose of this Order, the following definitions apply:

A “Administrator/Obligor™ means the party contractually obligated to perform
repair, replacement, or maintenance of property or to provide indemnification for repair,
‘replacemeént, or maintenance of property under the terms of a Service'Contract.

B.  “Clear and Conspicuous” means that a required disclosure is difficult to miss
(i.e;,-easily noticeable) and easily understandable by ordinary consumers, including in all of the
following ways:

1. In any communication that is solely visual or solely audible, the disclosurc

‘must be made throgh the same means through which the communication is presented. In

any commuication made through both visual and audible means, such as a television

‘advertisement, the disclosure must be presented simultaneously in both thevisual and

audible portions. of the.communication even if the representation requiring the disclosure
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is'made in only one means.

2, A visual disclosure, by its size, contrast, location, the length of time it
appears, and other characteristics, must stand out from any accompanying text or other
visial elements so thiat it is easily noticed, read, and understood.

3 An-audible disclosure, including by telephone or streaming:video, must be
delivered in a volume, speed, and cadence sufficient for ordinary constimers to-easily
hear-and understand it.

4, In any communication using an interactive electronic medium, such as the
Internct or software, the disclosure must be unavoidable.

5. The disclosure must use diction-and syntax understandable to ordinary
consumers and must appear in each language in which the representation that requires the
disclosure appears.

6. The disclosure must comply with these requirements in each medium
through which it is received, including all electronic devices and face-to-face
communications,

7. The disclosure must not be contradicted or mitigatcd by, or inconsistent
with,-anything else in the. communication.

8. When the represenitation or sales practice targets a specific audience, such
as children, the elderly, or the terminally ill, “ordinary consumers” includes reasonable
members of that group.

C. “Defendants” means NRRM, LLC d/b/a CarShield and American Auto Shield,

LLC (“AAS?), and their successors and assigns.
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D “Service Contract” means a contract or agreement lo perform the repair,
feplacémient, or maintenance of any property-or to provide indemnification for the repair,
replacement, or maintenance of any property.

E. “Telemarketing” means any plan, program, or campaign which'is conducted to
induce the'purchase of goods or services by use of one or-more telephones and which involves:
-more than one interstate tc_lepho_ne‘calﬂ,— as defined by the Telemarketing Sales Rule.

ORDER
. PROHIBITION AGAINST MISREPRESENTATIONS.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants, Defendants’ officers, agents, employees,
‘and attornéys, and all other persons in active concert or participation with any of them, who
receive:actual:notice of thi'sv()'rde‘ré whether acting directly or indirectly, in connection with
‘promioting,or-offering for sale any goad or service, are permancntly restrained and enjoined from
misrepresenting or assisting others in misrepresenting, expressly-or by: implicatfﬁn:

A. ‘whether, under what ¢ircumstances, or to-what extent.repair, replacement, or
nmainienance will be covered by.a Service Contract;

B. whether, under what circumstances, or to what extent any iricidental benefit,
?i‘hc‘l"ud'iﬁ‘g;,fbiit'hdt—.limit‘éd to, rental car benefits, will be provided by a Service Contract.

G ‘whethér of undér what circumstances, consumers c¢an use the mechanic or service
provider of their choice for repair, replacement, or maintenance with-a Service Contract;

D.  whether, under whatcircumstances, or to- what exterit.consumers-will be
xéspohsibié for out-of-pocket costs for repair, replacement, or maintenance witha Service
Contract; including, bur not limited 10, being responsible for a deductible;

E. the amount of claims an Administrator’Obligor of a Seivice Contract has paid.in
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the past;.or

F. any other fact material to consumers concerning any good orservice, such as: the
total costs; any material restrictions, limitations, or conditions; or any material aspect of its
pcrfompx;ge;z efficacy, nature, or.central characteristics.

I1. PROHIBITION AGAINST DECEPTIVE
TELEMARKETING

IT 1S-FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants and. Defendants’ officers, agents,
-employees, and attomeys, and all other persons in active concert or-participation with-any of
{thiém, who receive-actual notice of this:Order, whether acting.directly or indirectly, in connection
with the Telemarketing of-any product or service, are hereby permanently restrained and
‘enjoined from:

A, misrepresenting any material aspect of the performance; efficacy, nature, or
central characteristics of goods or services that are the subject of a sales*‘ot‘fe:;’»

B:  misreprésenting any material restriction; _limit,ation;<1or,=vcon¢’iition” 1o purchase,
receive; or use:goods of services that are the subject of a sales offet;

C.  failing to-disclosetruthfully, in a:Clearand Conspicuous manner, all material
restrictions, limitations, of conditions to purchase, receive, or use the goods or services.that are
the subject of the sales offer; before a custotner-consents to pay for goods or scrvices; of

D:  violating the Telemarketing Sales Rule, 16C.F.R. Part 310, a copy of which is
attached as Attachment A.

IIL. PROHIBITION REGARDING TESTIMONIALS
AND ENDORSEMENTS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants and Defendants® officers, agents,

-employees, and'attorneys; and.all other persons in active concert or ii'aniciba‘fiéﬁ with anyof.
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them, who teceive actual notice of this Ordcr, whether acting directly or indirectly, in connection
with'the advertising, promotion, offering for sale, or sale of any product or setvice, are:
permanently restrained and enjoined from misrepresenting, or assisting others in
misrepresenting, expreéssly or by implication:

A.  thatan endorser has owned or used the product or-service; or

B.  .aboutan-endorser’s experience with the product.or sefvice.

1V, MONITORING OF ADVERTISEMENTS:

IT ISFURTHER ORDERED that Defendant AAS, its officers, ageiits, employees; and.
-attomeys, and .all other persons in active concert or participation with any of them, who
receive actial notice of this Order, whether acting directly or indirectly, are permanently
‘restrained and.enjoined from failing to: |

A.  provide to each seller or marketer of any Service Contract for which AAS:is the
Administrator/Obligor, as a condition of doing business, a copy of this Order within 7 days of its
entry:and a Clear and. Conspicuous:disclosure in writing that engaging in acts or practices
prohibited by this Order will result iti disciplinary action by AAS, which may include immediate
‘termination:of any seller or marketer and forfeiture of all monies owed to such'seller or marketer;

B.  .obtain, within 45 days of entry of this Order, a signed-and dated statement from
each seller or marketer of any. Service Contract.for which AAS is the:Administiator/Obligor
acknowledging receipt of this Order and expressly agreeing to comply with it, or suspend, until
‘such:a staténient'is provided, all buisiness with any seller or marketer that. fails to provide it; and

C.  establish, implement, and thereafter maintain a system to review-and monitor all
imaterially distinct advertising or marketing materials tha-t any seller.or marketer uscs:to sell or

nmarket any:Service Contract for which-AAS is the Administrator/Obligor.
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V. MONETARY RELIEF JUDGMENT

IT IS:FURTHER ORDERED that:

A, Judgmentin the amount of Ten Million Dollars ($10,000,000) is entered in favor
‘of the Commission against-Defendants, jointly and severally, as monetary relicf.

B.  Defendants are ordered to pay to the Commission Ten Million Dollars
($10,000,000). Such payment must be made withiri 7 days of entry of this Order by electronic
fund transfer in-accordance with instructions previously provided by-a representative of the
Commission.

VI. ADDITIONAL MONETARY PROVISIONS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that:

A, Defendants relinquish dominion and all legal and equitable righ, title, and interest
‘inall assets transferred pursuant to this Order and may not seek the return of any assets.

B. The facts alleged in the Complaint will be taken as true, without further proof, in
‘any subsequent-civil litigation by or on behalf of the Commission, including in a proceeding to
‘énforce its Fights to any payment or monetary judgment pursuant to this Order, such as a
nondischargeability complaint in‘any bankruptcy case.

C.  Thefactsallegedin the Complaint establish all elements necessaryto sustain an

‘action by the Comimission pursuant to Section 523(a)(2)(A) of the Bankruptey Code, L1

(A), arid this Order will have collateral estoppél effect for such purposes.

D. Defendants acknowledge that their Employer Identification Numbers, which
‘Defendants must submit to the Commission within 7 days.of entry of this Order, may be used for
:reporting and other lawful purposes, including collecting on-any delinquent amount arising out of

‘this Order; in accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 7701,
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E.  Allmoneyreceived by the Comimission pursuant to this. Order may be deposited
‘into:a fund administered by the Commission of its designee 1o be used for consumer relief, such
asredress.and any-attendant expenses for the administration.of any redress fund. Ifa
l“t"épi"'e'"s‘eﬁtdtivé}:of the Comnission decides that direct redress to:consumers is wholly or partially:
impracticable or moncy remains aftér such redress is completed, the:Commission may apply any
remaining money for-suéh:_r_él_atgd‘ relief as it determines to be mssénabl)_l-fr'élﬁted to Defendants’
pr'afcticéj.i, a",l"l_egé_d‘ inthe Complaint. Any money not-used forrelief is to be deposited to the U.S,
Treasury.. Defcndants have no;rig‘,ht to challenge any actions the Cormission or ils
representatives may:take pursuant to this Subsection.

Vil. CUSTOMER INFORMATION

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants, Defendants® officers, agents,.employees,
and attoreys, and all other persons in active concert or participation with any of them, who
receiveactual-notice of this Order, whether acting directly pr'in‘dircctly'.“are"péﬁnanently
l'gs_itr.ained»;andfenjvojn‘gd froni directly or indirectly failing to:provide sufficient customer
information to.enable the Commission to efficiently administer consuriicr redress. Defendants
‘tepresent that they have provided this redress information to the Commission. If a representative:
of the:‘Commission requests in writinig any information refated to redress, Defendants must
provide it; in.the form prescribed by the Commission, within 14:days:

V1II.ORDER ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

ITiS FURTHER ORDERED ihat Defendants-obtain acknowledgments of receipt.of this
Order:

A. ‘Each Defendant; within 7 days of entry of this Order, must submiit to_the
Commission-an acknowledgment of receipt of this Order swomn under penalty of perjury.

B.  For.5ycars afterentry of this Order, each Defendant, must deliver.a copy of this
8
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Order:to: (1) all principals, officers, directors, and LLC managers and members; (2) all
Bmploygés;;ngntS;‘fahﬂ répreséntatives with managerial responsibilities for advertising,
marketing, or Telemarketing (including retention); and (3) any business entity resulting from any
change in struchure.as set forth in the Section titled -Compliancejﬁeponing. Delivery must oceur
within 7 dgys of entty of this Order for current pérsonnel, For all others, delivery must occur
before they-assume their responsibilities.
C.  From eachindividual or entity to which a Defendant delivered a copy of this
Order, that Deferidant must:obtain, within 30 days, a signed and dated acknowledgment of
receiptof this Order.
1X. COMPLIANCE REPORTING
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED: that Defendants make timely:submissions to the
iCormmission:
A.  '‘One yearafter entry of this Order, each Defendant must subsiit a compliance
report, sworn under penalty. of perjury. that:
L Identifies the primary physical, postal, and email address and telephone
number, as dqsignatedf'pginls of contact, which representatives of the Commission may
‘use to.communicate:with Defendant;
2, 1dentifies all of that Defendant’s businesses by:all of their names,
telephone numibers; and physical, postal, email, and Internet addresses;
3, ‘Describes thie activities of each businéss; incliding the goods and services
offered, the:means of advertising, marketin’g_, -and sales; and the involvement.ofany other

i)éf’e‘n‘(:lé;nt};_:~
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4, Describes in detail whether and how that Defendant is in compliance with
each Section of this Order; and
5. Provides a copy of each Order Acknowledgment obtained pursuant to this

Order, unless previously submitted to the Commission.

B. For 10 years after entry of this Order, each Defendant must submit a compliance
notice, sworn under penalty of perjury, within 14 days of any change in the following:

1. Any designated point of contact; or

2. The structure of any Corporate Defendant or any entity that Defendant has
any ownership interest in or controls directly or indircctly that may affect compliance
obligations arising under this Order, including: creation, merger, sale, or dissolution of
the entity or any subsidiary, parent, or affiliate that engages in any acts or practices
subject to this Order.

C. Each Defendant must submit to the Commission notice of the filing of any
bankruptcy petition, insolvency proceeding, or similar proceediﬁg by or against such Defendant
within 14 days of ils filing.

D. Any submission to the Commission required by this Order to be swom under
penalty of perjury must be true and accurate and comply with 28 U.S.C. § 1746, such as by
concluding: “I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of America
that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed on: _____ ™ and supplying the date, signatory’s
full name, title (if applicable), and signature.

E. Unless otherwisc directed by a Commission representative in writing, all
submissions to the Commission pursuant to this Order must be emailed to DEbrief@fic.gov or

sent by overnight courier (not the U.S. Postal Service) to: Associate Director for Enforcement,

10
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Bureau of Consumer Protection, Federal Trade Commission, 600:Pennsylvania-Avenue NW,
Washington, DC 20580 The subject line must begin: FTC v. NRRM, LLC d/b/a CarShield,
2223031,

X. RECORDKEEPING

IT IS.FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants must create certain records for 10 years
.afterentry of the/Order, and-retain each such record for 5:years. Specifically, each Defendant
‘must create and retain the fotlowing records:

A.  accountingrecords showing the revenues from all goods or services sold;

B. personnel récords showing, for each person providing:services, whether asan
:employee orotherwise; that person’s: name; addresses; telephon€ nuimbers; job;title or position;.
dates’of service;.and (if applicable) thé reason for termination;

C. records.of all consumer complaints and refund requests, whether received directly
orindirectly, such as through a-third party, and any response;

D.  all records necessary to.demonstrate full compliance with each provision of this
Order; including all submissiori to the Cominission; and

E. aqqpy-‘ofgaéh materially distinct advertisement or other marketing material;

XI..COMPLIANCE MONITORING

IT IS FFURTHER ORDERED that, for the purpose of monitoring Defendants’ compliance
with-this Order and any failure to transfer any assets as required by this Order:

A. Within: 14 days of receipt of a written request.from a representative of the
Commission, each Defendant must: submit additional compliance reports or other requested
inforthation, which must be sworn under penalty of perjury; dppear for depositions; and produce.

documents for inspéction and copying. The. Commission.is aiso authorized to obtain discovery,

t
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Federal Rules of Civil

Procediire 29, 30 (including dépositions by remote means), 31, 33, 34, 36, 45,.and 69.

B. For matters concerning this Order, the Commission is authorized to-.communicate
directly with:cach Defendant. Defendant must permiit representatives of the Cormmission to
ihtcNiéW’:_éfny“ employee or other person affiliated with-any Defendant who has Eagvl‘e._e,dk.lO suchan
interview: The person interviewed may have counsel present.

€.  The Commission may use all other lawful means, incliding posing, through its
fcprésentatiyes,:as consumers, suppliers, or other individuals or entities, to Defendants or any
individual or entity affiliated with Defendants, without the necessity of identification-or prior-
notice: Nothing in this Order limits'the Commission’s lawful use of ¢ompulsory process,
‘puirsuant to Sections'9 and 20'0fthe FTC Act, 15 1LS.C. §§49, 57h-1.

X1l RETENTION OF JURISDICTION
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Court retdins jurisdiction of this.maiter for

‘purposes;of construction, modification; and enforccment of this Order.

SO ORDERED this ___ day of ,2024.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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SO'STIPULATED AND AGREED:

FOR THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

Modttivew M. Scireff Date: 7/ 30/2024

Matthew M. Scheff 0082229(0OH)
A,dnenne__M_ Jenkins' 0_089568(0!-!)
Samimi D. Nachtigal 0400774(MN)
Attorneys- v

Federa! Trade.Commission

{111 Superior Avenue, Suite 200
Cleveland 0H44| 14

xmchclt(a)f‘tc gt')v, (2!6) 263-34!4

FOR DEFENDANT NRRM, LLC:
Michael E. Carter
General Counscl

Date: _&/ 7 Q 2D "52

FOR DEFENDANT AMERICAN AUTOQ SHIELD, LLC:

/T iason Culdier ©
4/ Vice. Presndent

Date; 06/09/2024

Allen H. Denson 999210{DC).
Morgan, Lewis & Bockius LLP

1111 Pennsylvania-Avenue NW
‘Washington, DC 20004

allen dcnsongazmnrg alewis.com
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{202)'739-3000

Danicl-S. Savrin:555434(MA)
Morgan, Lewis: & Bockius LLP
One Federal Street

Boston, MA 02110

daniglsavripid morganlewis.com
(617)341-7700

Counsel:for Defendants NRRM, LLC and American Auto Shield, LLC




